ST MONICA'S CATHOLIC PRIMARY SCHOOL

SEND Policy

(Special Educational Needs and Disabilities)



'Strive to succeed in the presence of God'

Together – as a Catholic community

Everyone - children, staff, parents, carers and parish

Achieves – in their unique way and tries to be

More – like Jesus

Date of Issue	February 2024
Date of local	1 001 001 1

SENCO: Dawn Roper has achieved National Award for SEND Co-ordination and is referred to in this policy as Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion.

CONTENTS

- 1. Legislation & Guidance
- 2. Values and Beliefs
- 3. Aims & Objectives
- 4. Identification of Special Educational Needs
- 5. A Graduated Approach to SEN Support
- 6. Managing Pupils' Needs on SEN Support
- 7. Engaging Specialist Services
- 8. Request for an Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP)
- 9. Criteria for Exiting the SEND Register
- 10. Supporting Pupils and Families
- 11. Transition between phases
- 12. Admission Arrangements
- 13. Links with external agencies
- 14. Access Arrangements for Assessments
- 15. Training and Resources
- 16. Storing and Managing Information
- 17. Accessibility
- 18. Dealing with Complaints
- 19. Bullying
- 20. Monitoring and Evaluation of SEND
- 21. Reviewing the SEND Policy

Appendices

Legislation & Guidance

This policy complies with the statutory requirement laid out in the SEND Code of Practice 0-25, July 2014 and has been written with reference to the following guidance and documents:

- Equality Act (2010)
- SEND Code of Practice 0-25 (July 2014)
- Schools' SEN Information Report Regulations (2014)
- Statutory Guidance on Supporting pupils at school with medical conditions (April 2014)]
- Safeguarding policy
- Accessibility Plan
- Teaching Standards (2013)

The policy has been developed in co-production with parents, Senior Leadership Team, staff and should be read in conjunction with the following:

- SEND information Report
- Enfield's Local Offer
 - Equal Opportunities Policy
 - Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy
 - Supporting children with medical needs
 - Positive Handling Policy
 - First Aid Policy
 - Accessibility Policy
 - Behaviour Policy
 - Teaching and Learning Policy
 - Early Years Foundation Stage Policy
 - Complaints Procedures
 - Intimate Care Policy

Values and Beliefs

At St Monica's Primary School, we welcome pupils with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) and make every effort to support them. All our classes are inclusive, which means that we cater for all ranges of ability and need, and endeavour to identify potential barriers to learning and put strategies in place so that they can access the curriculum. We have high expectations for all our children, including those with SEND. Every child is valued equally and given support according to their needs. By nurturing the whole child and building self-esteem, confidence grows and children acquire the necessary skills to become responsible young people. Working in partnership with parents, all staff encourage children to develop a love of learning, to aspire to achieve their best and support them to succeed.

At St Monica's Primary School we respect each other's:

- Age
- Disability
- Gender
- Gender Identity
- Marriage or civil partnership
- Pregnancy
- Race or Nationality

- Religion or Belief
- Sexual orientation

All children get one chance at education and they are entitled to receive the best. Our teachers are their chance of getting this.

Aims and Objectives of this Policy

At St Monica's Primary School, our aim is for every child, including those with SEND, to achieve the very best that they can and to develop the necessary academic and social skills for later life. SEND is the golden thread in our teaching and learning at St Monica's school. We have a high ambition and expectations for all pupils. As well as a strong focus on high standards of literacy and numeracy, we encourage children to take responsibility for their own learning and to develop skills which will make them better learners and citizens in the future. In addition to high quality, adaptive teaching within the classroom, wherever possible, we will tailor the support given to enable children to achieve the desired outcomes, by working closely with parents and children. Support given will be regularly monitored to ensure it is effective.

Objectives

- To provide children with SEND with the same opportunities as all children.
- To identify children's needs and take early intervention with all staff sharing the responsibility for identifying, assessing and meeting the needs of children with SEND.
- To ensure access to a broad and balanced curriculum through adaptive planning and appropriate modifications.
- To provide access to appropriate intervention programmes according to the needs of the child.
- To keep clear, up-to-date records tracking individual children, as they move through the school.
- To work in partnership with parents, pupils and outside agencies.
- To ensure that resources are identified and coordinated according to the needs of individual children.
- To ensure that all governors and parents are aware of the policy.
- To ensure that the SEND governor is kept up to date with SEND practices in school.
- To work with parents and pupils to develop achievable and relevant targets for children on the SEND register.
- To provide support and advice for all staff working with special educational needs pupils.

Identification of Special Educational Needs

The Code of Practice states that:

A child of compulsory school age has a learning difficulty or disability if he or she:

- Has significantly greater difficulty in learning than the majority of others of the same age, or
- Has a disability which prevents or hinders him or her from making use of facilities of a kind generally provided for others of the same age in mainstream schools (SEND Code of Practice, 2014, pg 15-16)

At St Monica's Primary School, we aim to identify needs early, but the Code of Practice states pupils will only be identified as SEND if they do not make adequate progress once they have had interventions and good quality personalised teaching. The purpose of identification

is to work out what provision will best support each child so that long-term outcomes can be improved. The needs of the whole child are considered, not just their special educational needs.

Within each class, teachers constantly monitor children's progress through observation, discussion, analysis of their work and regular assessment. Pupil progress meetings are held once a term with teachers and the senior leadership team to review progress of all children; any children who are underachieving are identified and ways of getting them back on track are discussed.

In identifying a child as needing SEND support, the class teacher, working with the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion, will establish a clear analysis of the pupil's needs. This draws on the teacher's assessment and experience of the pupil, information on the child's progress, attainment and behaviour. In addition, the teacher will look at the child's development in comparison to their peers and meet with parents to establish their views and experience.

Children for whom English is not their first language

The identification and assessment of the special educational needs of children whose first language is not English requires care. Where there is uncertainty about a particular child, a teacher will look carefully at all aspects of the child's performance in different subjects to establish whether any difficulties are due to being in the early stages of English or arise from a special educational need/s.

The SEND Code of Practice identifies 4 broad categories of need:

Communication and interaction

Children and young people with speech, language and communication needs (SLCN) have difficulty in communicating with others. This may be because they have difficulty saying what they want to, understanding what is being said to them or they do not understand or use social rules of communication. The profile for every child with SLCN is different, and their needs may change over time. They may have difficulty with one, some, or all of the different aspects of speech, language or social communication at different times of their lives.

Children and young people with Autism, are likely to have particular difficulties with social communication and interaction. They may also experience difficulties with language, communication and imagination, which can impact on how they relate to others.

Cognition and learning

Support for learning difficulties may be required when children and young people, who learn differently to their peers, even when appropriate adaptive teaching is in place. Learning difficulties cover a wide range of needs, including mild learning difficulties (MILD), moderate (MLD) and severe learning difficulties (SLD). Children may require additional support if they have difficulties with mobility and communication, through to profound and multiple learning difficulties (PMLD), where children are likely to have severe and complex learning difficulties as well as a physical disability or sensory impairment.

Specific learning difficulties (SpLD), affect one or more specific aspects of learning. This encompasses a range of conditions such as dyslexia, dyscalculia and developmental coordination disorder.

Social, emotional and mental health

Children and young people may experience a wide range of social and emotional difficulties which manifest themselves in many ways. These may include becoming withdrawn or isolated, as well as displaying challenging, disruptive or disturbing behaviour. These behaviours may reflect underlying mental health difficulties such as anxiety or depression, self-harming, substance misuse, eating disorders or physical symptoms that are medically unexplained. Other children and young people may have disorders such as attention deficit disorder, attention deficit hyperactivity disorder or attachment disorder.

Sensory and/or physical needs

Some children and young people require special educational provision because they have a disability which prevents or hinders them from making use of the educational facilities generally provided. These difficulties can be age related and may fluctuate over time. Many children and young people with vision impairment (VI), hearing impairment (HI) or a multi-sensory impairment (MSI) will require specialist support and/or equipment to access their learning, or rehabilitation support. Children and young people with an MSI have a combination of vision and hearing difficulties.

Some children and young people with a physical disability (PD) require additional ongoing support and equipment to access all the opportunities available to their peers.

The following are *not* considered SEN but may impact on progress and attainment:

- Attendance and punctuality
- Health and Welfare
- English as an additional language
- Being in receipt of Pupil Premium Grant
- Being a Looked After Child
- Being a child of a serviceman/woman.

A Graduated Approach to SEN Support

For some children, SEND can be identified at an early age. However, for other children, difficulties become evident only as they develop and mature. All those who work with children are alert to emerging difficulties and know that an early response is key. Parents know their children best and therefore we will listen and understand when you express concerns about your child's development. We will also listen to and address any concerns raised by children themselves.

Class teachers, supported by the senior leadership team, make regular assessments of progress for all pupils. Pupils making less than expected progress, given their age and individual circumstances, are identified. This can be characterised by progress which:

- Is significantly slower than that of their peers starting from the same baseline
- Fails to match or better the child's previous rate of progress
- Fails to close the attainment gap between the child and their peers
- Widens the attainment gap

It can include progress in areas other than attainment – for instance where a pupil needs to make additional progress with social needs.

An important factor in tackling underachievement and providing for children with SEND, is high quality teaching which is adapted and targeted to support the child's difficulties. The quality of teaching for all pupils, including provision made for underachieving children, is reviewed regularly. Where it is necessary, teachers will be provided with training on strategies to identify and support vulnerable pupils in their class. SEND training is also ongoing, through in-service training days or at staff meetings.

The child is recorded by the school as being monitored due to concern by the parent or teacher, but this does not automatically place the child on the school's SEND Register. Pupils will only be identified as having SEN if they do not make adequate progress after having received good quality, personalised teaching and appropriate interventions and adjustments i.e. after being identified for interventions and personalised targets, making little or no progress.

Once a potential special need is identified, four types of action will be taken to put effective support in place: Assess – Plan – Do – Review. This is the graduated approach called SEN Support. Earlier decisions and actions are revisited, refined and revised with a growing understanding of the pupil's needs and what supports the pupil in making good progress and securing good outcomes.

Assess

Once concerns have been raised indicating that a child may have a special educational need, the teacher and Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion will consider all of the information gathered from within school and from parents about the child's progress, alongside national data and expectations of progress. Early on, we will talk to the pupil (age appropriate) and parents to help us develop a good understanding of the child's areas of strength and difficulties, parents' concerns and potential next steps. More specialised assessments from external agencies and professionals may be sought, such as the Educational Psychologist, Speech and Language Therapist, Occupational Therapist or Physiotherapist.

Regular reviews will ensure that support and interventions continue to be matched to the child's needs and are evolving as required.

Plan

Parents are formally notified once a decision has been made to provide a child with SEND Support. However, parents will already have contributed to the identification and assessment of needs (as indicated above). The teacher and the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion will agree in consultation with the parent and the pupil - the adjustments, interventions and support to be put in place, as well as the expected impact on progress, development or behaviour, along with a clear date for review.

All teachers and support staff who work with the pupil will be made aware of the child's difficulties, the outcomes sought, the support provided and any teaching strategies or approaches that are required. This will be recorded on the child's learning support plan.

The support and intervention provided will be selected as most appropriate to meet the outcomes identified for the pupil, based on reliable evidence of effectiveness, and will be provided by staff with sufficient skills and knowledge.

Do

The class teacher is responsible for working with the child on a daily basis. Where interventions involve group or one-to-one teaching away from the class teacher, they still retain responsibility for the pupil. Teachers work closely with teaching assistants or specialist staff to plan and assess the impact of support and interventions and how they can be linked to classroom teaching. Evidence of progress may be seen in the child's work, and assessment results, through observations and conversations.

The Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion will continue to support the class teacher in any further assessment of the child's particular strengths and weaknesses, in problem-solving and advising on the effective implementation of support.

Review

The effectiveness of the support and interventions and their impact on the pupil's progress should be reviewed after the pupil progress meetings (where SLT, class teacher discuss all pupil's progress), along with the views of the pupil and their parents. This will feed back into the analysis of the child's needs. The class teacher, working with the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion, will revise the support in light of the pupil's progress and development, deciding on any changes to the support and outcomes in consultation with the parent and pupil.

If a child has an Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP), the local authority **must** review that plan as a minimum every twelve months. See page 10 for information about EHCPs. At St Monica's Primary School, we will hold annual review meetings with parents, the child and professionals where available, to review progress against outcomes specified in the EHCP and whether these remain appropriate. Special educational provision will be reviewed to ensure it is effective in ensuring access to teaching and learning and good progress. Where appropriate, new outcomes will be discussed and agreed.

Managing Pupils' Needs on SEN Support

Learning support plans will be reviewed 3 times per year. Outcomes are reviewed regularly to ensure they are:

- Specific
- Measurable
- Achievable
- Realistic
- Time bound

In working towards achieving the desired outcomes for the child, we discuss with parents the activities and support that will help achieve them and identify the responsibilities of the parent, the pupil and the school. Each child receiving SEND support is placed on the SEND Register.

It is the teacher's responsibility to evidence progress towards the outcomes described in the child's learning support or Verbo (speech and language) plan. These working documents are used by the teacher to aid planning and assessment. All adults working with the child and their families will have access to them. The Verbo programmes can be accessed by parents via the Verbo website. https://verboapp.co.uk/

The level and type of support is matched as closely as possible to the identified needs of the child. The class teacher, with the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion, will decide on the action needed to help the child to progress in the light of the range of assessments and discussions carried out. This may include:

- Different learning resources or special equipment
- Pre-teaching vocabulary and concepts or embedding new learning through structured over learning
- Specialist Dyslexia programmes
- Speech and Language programmes
- Activities or groups to improve fine and gross motor skills
- Small group or individual interventions
- Social skills group

All interventions are delivered regularly for a specified number of weeks with clear and expected outcomes. Progress is measured against a baseline assessment made before the programme starts.

Engaging Specialist Services

If additional advice is needed, the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion will arrange a meeting with parents to request permission to make a referral. Referrals to the EPS/CAMHS/Speech and Language Service and many other support services are made using the specific referral forms which are completed by the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion with information gathered from parents and the child's teacher.

Once a referral has been received, these external professionals, often from the National Health Service may:

- Meet with parents
- Meet/observe the child
- Assess the child
- Meet school staff
- Provide suggestions, advice or a programme for school staff to deliver
- Review suggestions and reassess the child where necessary

The school buys in additional visits each year from the Educational Psychology Service.

Request for an Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP)

If a child has lifelong or significant and multiple difficulties and additional funding and support is needed from the Local Authority High Needs Block, we can request that the child undergo a needs assessment for an Educational Health Care Plan. This is usually requested by the school but can be requested by a parent. Please see Enfield's local offer. https://www.enfield.gov.uk/services/children-and-education/local-offer

It will normally occur where the complexity of needs of the child are such that a multi-agency approach to assessing that need, to planning provision and identifying resources is required.

The decision to make a request for a needs assessment for an EHCP can be taken at any time; however, there must be clear evidence to demonstrate that the child's needs are significant and have been largely unresponsive to intensive input through additional programmes. The application for an assessment will combine information from a variety of sources including:

- Parents
- Teachers
- Child
- Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion
- Educational Psychologist
- CAMHS
- Speech and Language Therapist
- Social Care
- Health professionals

Information will be gathered relating to the current provision provided, action points that have been taken, and the preliminary outcomes of targets set. A decision will be made by a panel of professionals from education, health and social care about whether or not the child is eligible for an EHC Plan. Parents have the right to appeal against a decision not to initiate a needs assessment leading to an EHC Plan.

Further information about Education Health Care Plans can found via the SEND Local Offer:

https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/children-and-education/local-offer/

Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCP)

Following a needs assessment, an Education Health Care Plan will be provided by the local authority if it is decided that the child's needs are not being met by the support that is ordinarily available.

Parents have the right to appeal against the content of the EHCP. They may also appeal against the school named in the plan if it differs from their preferred choice.

Once the EHCP has been completed and agreed, it will be kept as part of the pupil's formal record and reviewed at least annually by staff, parents and the pupil. The annual review enables provision for the pupil to be evaluated and, where appropriate, for changes to be put in place. For example; reducing or increasing levels of support.

Criteria for Exiting the SEND Register

If, after additional provision the pupil is back on track or 'closed the gaps' significantly, they will remain on the SEN Support for a further 2 reviews (ie 2 terms) to ensure that progress is maintained. This will be discussed with the parents and the child when appropriate. After two successful reviews they will be removed from the SEN Support Register but remain on a 'monitoring' list to continue to closely monitor at further Pupil Progress meetings.

A summary of the graduated approach to SEND has been included in the Appendix.

Supporting Pupils and Families

The local authority has produced a local offer, which can be found at:

https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/children-and-education/local-offer/

We have a statutory requirement to provide a SEND Information Report (Regulation 51,Part 3, Section 69(3)(a) of the Act. Our SEN Information Report can be found on our website by following this link https://www.st-monicas.enfield.sch.uk/learning/send/

Effective transition between phases

Nursery to reception class

When a child/ren is/are due to enter our reception class, the class teacher and nursery nurse will meet parents/carers of children with additional needs face to face or virtually to collect information about the child/ren. Nursery reports are usually sent direct to the school. We plan carefully to help all the children to feel safe and to settle in. Additionally, where appropriate, the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion and class teacher will make a visit to the child's nursery.

Handover meeting between classes

When a child moves to a new class, we organise a handover meeting between the class teachers and support staff from the former and the new class to ensure that there is a clear understanding of the child's profile.

We also plan transition sessions in the summer term during which children go into their new class and have a lesson with their new teacher. Thus, children can familiarise themselves with their new classroom environment. Some children are also provided with a transition booklet, which contains photos of their new environment (for the following academic year) to refer to over the summer holidays.

Transition to secondary school

We will ensure timely planning for transfer of a pupil to another school. In the academic year before the year in which they leave, we will offer transition meetings to all pupils with SEND (and their parents/carers), including those with statements or EHCPs, to discuss the options for the next phase of their education. Accompanied visits to other schools may be arranged as appropriate. Support will be provided to help pupils come to terms with moving. It will be carefully planned and include familiarisation visits and counselling.

Parents will be given a reliable named contact at the next school with whom the SENCo will liaise.

Admission Arrangements

Admissions are arranged by <u>Enfield Borough Council</u> who follow the criteria set out for admissions to local authority schools.

Children can start in the Reception in the September of the academic year when they turn five.

Prior to starting school, children and parents are invited to a 'stay and play' session in July, when parents and children meet the teachers and nursery nurses. The reception teachers visit all children who are new to the school in their home environment before they are admitted to the school. This is an opportunity for parents/carers to discuss any concerns that they may have for their child on entering school. SEND pupils identified prior to starting school may receive a home or pre-school visit from the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion.

Links with external agencies

External support services play an important role in helping the school to identify, assess and make provision for children with SEND. Outside agencies will usually be contacted for a child on the SEND register. The following services are those which are most commonly consulted by the school:

- Educational Psychology Service (EPS)
- Speech and Language Therapy Service (SALT)
- Strengthening Wellbeing, Emotional health, Relationships and Readiness for Learning (SWERRL)
- Child Development Team (CDT)
- Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS)
- Education Welfare Officer (EWO)
- Social Services
- School Nurse Service
- Occupational Therapy Service (OT)
- Physiotherapy Service (PT)
- LA SEN advisory service
- Enfield Advisory Service for Autism (EASA)

Links with other schools

Once secondary places are confirmed individual meetings are arranged with key professionals to support the transfer planning, for example; school visits, mentoring, additional meetings with parents, additional visits to the new school. Transition meetings are also held with secondary schools for children leaving the school who have SEND Support or EHCPs. When children transfer to or are admitted from another primary school, their records are forwarded/requested in order to ensure continuity of provision.

We also have links with the following specialist teachers/outreach services:

- Peripatetic teachers for children with a hearing impairment
- Peripatetic teachers for children with a visual impairment
- West Lea Outreach
- Waverley Outreach
- Suffolk and Houndsfield Language Units

The school's policy on managing medical conditions of pupils can be found in the policies section of our website.

The school recognises that pupils at school with medical conditions should be properly supported so that they have full access to education, including school trips and physical education. Some children with medical conditions may be disabled and where this is the case the school will comply with its duties under the Equality Act 2010.

Some may also have SEND and may have an Education Health and Care Plan which brings together health and social care needs, as well as their special educational provision and the SEND Code of Practice (2014) is followed.

Each child's medical needs will be very individual, but we will endeavour to work closely with each child, parents/carers, health professionals and home tutoring service when needed, to ensure all needs are met. All staff receive updated training on the administration of Epipen every year (for severe allergic reactions) and other medications as necessary. All children with medical conditions have care plans which are updated with the parents and reviewed by the senior leadership team. Copies of these are in the medical room and held securely in the child's classroom.

Access Arrangements for Assessments

There are many adjustments that can be made for children who require support to access assessments. These are based on normal classroom practice and may include:

- Extra time
- Use of a scribe
- A reader
- Enlarged print
- Coloured paper to reduce glare
- Small group to encourage focus
- For the end of Key Stage assessments, the Year 6 class teachers will apply for special access arrangements in accordance with the requirements of the NCA, following discussions with parents.

Training and Resources

The Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion attends regular SEND conferences and SEN Coordinator partnership meetings with local schools to keep up to date with developments in the field of SEND. Staff members are encouraged to attend SEND training, where a need is identified for an individual child or for a group of children in their class or year group. TAs receive regular access to training. Other opportunities are highlighted through professional development meetings and whole school priorities. All staff have access to training through the Haringey Education Partnership (HEP) training programme. Training during staff meetings is provided by the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion and specialist agencies e.g. speech and language services and the Educational Psychology Service as appropriate.

All teachers and support staff undertake induction on taking up a post and this includes a meeting with the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion to explain systems and structures in place around the school's SEND provision and practice and to discuss the needs of individual pupils.

The school receives a small amount of funding from the Local Authority, based on their agreed formula. The majority of funding for SEND provision comes from the school's main budget. Where a child has an EHCP for complex needs, top up funding is provided by the Local Authority.

Roles and Responsibilities

The Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion works with the Headteacher, and governing body, in determining the strategic development of SEND policy and provision in the school. They have day-to-day responsibility for the operation of SEND policy and coordination of specific provisions made to support individual pupils with SEND, including those who have EHCPs. The Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion provides professional guidance to colleagues and work closely with staff, parents and other agencies. They are able to work with professionals providing a support

role to families to ensure that pupils with SEND receive appropriate support and high-quality teaching.

The key responsibilities of the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion include:

- Overseeing the day-to-day operation of the school's SEND policy.
- Coordinating provision for children with SEND
- Liaising with HT where a looked after pupil has SEND
- Advising on the graduated approach to providing SEND support
- Working with the HT to advise on the deployment of the school's delegated budget and other resources to meet pupils' needs effectively
- Liaising with parents of pupils with SEND
- Liaising with early years providers, other schools, educational psychologists, health and social care professionals, and independent or voluntary bodies
- Being a key point of contact with external agencies, especially the local authority and its support services
- Liaising with potential next providers of education to ensure a pupil and their parents are informed about options and a smooth transition is planned
- Working with the HT, and school governors to ensure that the school meets its responsibilities under the Equality Act (2010) with regard to reasonable adjustments and access arrangements
- Ensuring that the school keeps the records of all pupils with SEND up to date

Role of the Governing Body

The role of the Governing Body is to:

- Ensure that the necessary provision is made for any pupil who has special educational needs
- Ensure that where the Headteacher has been informed by the LA that a pupil has SEND, those needs are made known to all who are likely to teach him/her
- Ensure that teachers in the school are aware of the importance of identifying and providing for those pupils who have SEND
- Report annually to parents on the school's policy for pupils with SEND
- Ensure that pupils with SEND join in all activities of the school together with pupils who do
 not have SEND, so far as this is reasonably practical and compatible with the pupil
 receiving the necessary special educational provision, the efficient education of the other
 children in the school and the efficient use of resources
- Have regard to the Code of Practice when carrying out their duties towards all pupils with SEND

Role of the SEND Governor

The role of the SEND Governor is to:

- Assist in the formation of the SEND Policy.
- Liaise with the Headteacher and Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion and the full governing body.

- Provide the governing body with information to enable them to fulfil their responsibilities
- The designated SEN Governor is Bob Westbury

Role of the class teachers

The class teacher is responsible for:

- Valuing all children and helping them to develop good self-esteem
- Assessing each pupil's current skills and levels of attainment on entry, building on information from previous settings and key stages where appropriate.
- Making regular assessments of progress for all pupils. These should seek to identify pupils
 making less than expected progress given their age and individual circumstances
- Provide high quality teaching which target identified areas of weakness
- Where progress continues to be less than expected, work with the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion to help assess whether the child has SEND.
- Consider what reasonable adjustments may need to be made for any pupils who have a
 disability
- Putting in place extra teaching or other rigorous interventions designed to secure better progress, where required.
- Being alert to emerging difficulties and to respond early. Listen and understand when parents
 express concerns about their child's development and listen to and address any concerns
 raised by children and young people themselves.

Role of Teaching Assistants

St Monica's Primary School has a team of Teaching Assistants who support children with SEND, through interventions and in class support.

The Designated Teacher for Looked After Children is: Kate Baptiste (HT)

The Designated Teacher Safeguarding Lead is Kate Baptiste (HT) Safeguarding deputies are Dawn Roper (AHT) Helen Tottle-Nugent (AHT)

The people responsible for managing the Pupil Premium Grant and Looked After Children funding are Dawn Roper (AHT), Helen Tottle-Nugent (AHT) and Kate Baptiste (HT)

Those managing the school's responsibility for meeting the medical needs of pupils are: Ms Romona Elliott (Welfare Officer) and Senior Leadership Team

Storing and Managing Information

All information regarding SEND children: Learning Support Plans, professionals' reports and tracking data is stored securely with the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion. Copies of relevant documentation are stored securely by teachers and shared with relevant staff, who understand the information contained in them is confidential. All documentation is passed on to the receiving school when a child moves on.

Accessibility

The school building is wheelchair accessible and there are disabled changing and toilet facilities. As a school we are committed to ensuring that children and adults with SEND can access the school. School adapts the environment wherever practicable to the needs of children, including accessing specialist equipment if needed. The main school hall has been acoustically modified to improve the sound quality for all pupils, including those with hearing impairment. Every effort is made to select the most appropriate classroom for SEND requirements.

The Accessibility Policy can be found on the School's website https://www.st-monicas.enfield.sch.uk/our-school/policies/

Dealing with Complaints

As a caring school, we do hope to deal with any problems in cooperation with parents. Initially, this should be with your child's class teacher. If it is appropriate, they will refer to the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion or Headteacher or you can make an appointment to meet with the Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion /Headteacher. If the school is unable to resolve the complaint, there is a formal complaints procedure that can be followed which is in the policy section of the school website https://www.st-monicas.enfield.sch.uk/our-school/policies/

Bullying

Staff are aware of the particular vulnerability of children with SEND and the importance of promoting and respecting individual differences as well as safeguarding children with SEND. Each class has circle times and assemblies and our behaviour system is centred on respect and consideration for all. Annually there is an anti-bullying week so that aspects of bullying can be addressed and discussed in depth.

Monitoring and Evaluation of SEND

The SEND Policy will be monitored regularly to ensure that:

- The ethos of the school is reflected in the provision so that children's individual differences are recognised and valued
- There are effective systems for identifying, assessing and monitoring children with SEND involving all relevant members of staff. Formal evaluations of progress are at least termly and discussed during pupil progress meetings and promote an active process of continual review and improvement of provision for all pupils.
- In addition there are 'learning walks', work and planning scrutinies and pupil voice meetings, and parent views are recorded through questionnaires after Parent's Consultations.
- There is a close liaison with parents.
- All plans drawn up (e.g. LSP's) are shared with parents.
- There is the utilisation of outside support services and agencies as appropriate.
- There is efficient management of record keeping for children with SEND.
- There is a consistency of support in order to enhance continuity of learning.

Reviewing the SEND Policy

The Headteacher, Assistant Headteacher for Inclusion and SEN Governor will review the SEND policy annually. Views will be sought from teachers, parents and where appropriate the children.

Appendices

St Monica's Primary School SEN Information Report can be viewed on the school's website https://www.st-monicas.enfield.sch.uk/learning/send/

The Enfield Local offer can be viewed on:

https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/children-and-education/local-offer/

SEND Code of Practice 0 – 25 (July 2014)

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/342440/SEND_Code_of_Practice_approved_by_Parliament_29.07.14.pdf

Managing Medicines and Supporting Children with Medical Needs:

Statutory Guidance on Supporting pupils at school with medical conditions (April 2014) https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/306952/Statutory_guidance_on_supporting_pupils_at_school_with_medical_conditions.pdf

Schools SEN Information Report Regulations (2014) https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/251874/Consultation_non_draft_0_to_25_Special_Educational_Needs_SEN_--SEN_information.pdf

The Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy can be viewed on the school policy section of the website.

Equality Act 2010;

Advice for Schools (DFE, February 2013) Single Equality Policy

Accessibility Policy can be found in policy section of website https://www.st-monicas.enfield.sch.uk/our-school/policies/

Glossary of Terms

CAMHS	Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services
CPD	Continuing Professional Development
EHCP	Education Health and Care Plan
EPS	Educational Psychology Service
PSHE	Personal, Social and Health Education
SEN	Special Educational Needs
SENCo	Special Educational Needs Coordinator
SEND	Special Educational Needs and Disability
TAC	Team Around the Child
SpLD	Specific Learning Difficulty
SEMH	Social, Emotional and Mental Health
ASD	Autistic Spectrum Disorder
SLCN	Speech, Language and Communication Needs
MLD	Moderate Learning Difficulty
SLD	Severe Learning Difficulty
PMLD	Profound and Multiple Learning Difficulty
VI	Visual Impairment
HI	Hearing Impairment
MSI	Multisensory Impairment
PD	Physical Disability
EAL	English as an Additional Language
LAC	Looked After Child
PP	Pupil Premium
EP	Educational Psychologist
SALT	Speech and Language Therapist
ОТ	Occupational Therapist
SWERRL	Strengthening Wellbeing, Emotional Health, Relationships and Readiness for Learning
EEHF	Enfield Early Help Form
IEP	Individual Education Plan
AHT	Assistant Headteacher

The Graduated Approach (APDR)

